

SUBJECT:	R&R Committee – Annual Report & Proposals for Changes	AGENDA #	23
AUTHOR:	Ronald Overdijk, Chair – Rules and Regulations Committee		
DATE:	26 November 2025	PAGES:	1 of 32

International Skydiving Commission Rules & Regulations Committee Annual Report 2025



This year was an exceptional one for the R&R Committee. We initiated a project to set standards for competition committees regarding the use of competition terminology and definitions. We felt there were too many unclarities and diverse and inconsistent use of terms. We also worked on a proposal to further clean up chapter 3 (records) of SC5. In order to do this we had three (long) online meetings and sent up to ten drafts of documents. On top of that we received some input from competition committees and the Bureau, relating to SC5 and the IR's. We still managed to send all relevant documents with proposed changes in time to the ISC Secretary.

The definitions document – if accepted – will have impact on all competition rules. The idea is to have this document accepted and have all competition rules compliant preferably by March 1st 2026 but by 2027 latest. As normal, the final call and decision is on the Plenary. We do hope for positive feedback. For the other work done by the committee I refer to the explanations in the proposals.

My thanks for this year go to my R&R colleagues for their work and contributions: Gernot Rittenschober, Richard “Buzz” Bennett, Claire King, Vera Asquith, Rina Gallo and Ralph Schüsser. Buzz Bennett has indicated he steps down from R&R. It goes without saying that his input and work – let alone his previous function as R&R Chair – has been invaluable. I personally wish him all the best in good health. In closing I thank my colleagues for their hard word and contributions in the past year.

Ronald Overdijk
Chair R&R Committee

November 27th 2025

<i>SUBJECT:</i>	R&R Committee – Annual Report & Proposals for Changes	<i>AGENDA #</i>	23
<i>AUTHOR:</i>	Ronald Overdijk, Chair – Rules and Regulations Committee		
<i>DATE:</i>	26 November 2025	<i>PAGES:</i>	2 of 32

RULES & REGULATIONS COMMITTEE
Proposals for changes 2026



Table of Contents

Appendix A – “Definitions” update [\(Jump to page 3\)](#)

Appendix B – Records – Chapter 3 [\(Jump to page 9\)](#)

Appendix C – SC5 – FCEAD - FAI Controller Handbook – Jury Handbook [\(Jump to page 18\)](#)

Appendix D – FAI Controller Standard Report form [\(Jump to page 29\)](#)

Appendix E - Internal Regulations [\(Jump to page 30\)](#)

SUBJECT:	R&R Committee – Annual Report & Proposals for Changes	AGENDA #	23
AUTHOR:	Ronald Overdijk, Chair – Rules and Regulations Committee		
DATE:	26 November 2025	PAGES:	3 of 32

APPENDIX A
RULES & REGULATIONS COMMITTEE
DEFINITIONS UPDATE Proposals for changes 2026


Airsport Class G: GS 2.1.2.7 **Leave as is, definitions of the 'devices' as in GS 2.1.**

Airsport Class G: Parachute – A collapsible fabric device designed to counteract the effects of gravity and intended to be used to return a suspended load or person safely to the surface of the earth. (AL13)

Wind Tunnel – A vertical or horizontal tunnel in which an airstream is generated by power enabling body flight similar to that achieved in freefall.

Airsport Commissions: according to GS 2.2 (Airsport discipline)

Airsport Discipline: ~~Parachuting~~ Skydiving and Indoor Skydiving
Suggested change.

SC5, 1.1.2.2 already has defined the word 'skydiving'. This would imply the end of the use of the word 'parachuting'. The definition of a parachute would still be needed as it appears in other documents, and National Parachuting Authorities still have this name.

Category: no definition yet

Category: Criteria (such as age and gender) that a competitor or team must meet in order to appear in separate result lists, as described in the Competition Rules.

As this definition is currently missing and used in several Competition Rules and for results, it is needed to have one.

Sporting Events: according to GS Chapter 4

Sporting Events: FCE's like: World Championship, Continental Championship, World Air Games, Multi-Sport Competitions **No change, leave as is.**
SCE's international sporting events other than FCE like: World Cup Series AL, World Cup Series PS, ISSA World Cup Series, DWSC, USCPA Swoop League

SUBJECT:	R&R Committee – Annual Report & Proposals for Changes	AGENDA #	23
AUTHOR:	Ronald Overdijk, Chair – Rules and Regulations Committee		
DATE:	26 November 2025	PAGES:	4 of 32

Competition skydiving discipline: no definition yet in SC 5 - 1.1.1.3 and 1.1.1.4

Competition skydiving discipline: A skydiving or indoor skydiving discipline that has a set of competition rules defined by the ISC with distinct requirements, rules, and objectives.

The word ‘discipline’ is currently used but a definition is missing.

Competition skydiving disciplines:

- Accuracy Landing (AL)
- Style (ST)
- Formation Skydiving (FS ~~and including Vertical Formation Skydiving – VFS~~)
- Canopy Formation (CF)
- Parachute-Ski (PS)
- Artistic Events (AE)
- Canopy Piloting (CP)
- Speed Skydiving (SP)
- Wingsuit Flying (WS)

Formation Skydiving is the competition skydiving discipline, VFS is a sub-discipline similar to 4-way or 8-way and doesn’t need a separate mention.

Canopy Piloting is the competition skydiving discipline. CP Freestyle is a sub-discipline and does not need separate mention.

Competition indoor skydiving disciplines:

- Indoor Formation Skydiving (IFS ~~and including Indoor Vertical Formation Skydiving – IVFS~~)
- Indoor Artistic Events (Indoor Solo Freestyle – ISF)
- Indoor Dynamic Flying (DY, ~~and including Dynamic Solo Speed – DS~~)
- Indoor Para Skydiving (IPS)

- Rearrange in alphabetical order.
- Rearranging / renumbering of SC5 1.1.1.3 and 1.1.1.4 needed.
- Indoor Formation Skydiving is the Competition Indoor Skydiving Discipline. IVFS is a sub-discipline similar to 4-way or 8-way and doesn’t need a separate mention.
- Addition of “Indoor” to Artistic Events creates consistency with FS.
- Dynamic changed to “Indoor Dynamic Flying”, agreed with the indoor committee.
- Dynamic Flying is the Competition Indoor Skydiving discipline, Dynamic Solo Speed is a sub-discipline similar to 2-way or 4-way and doesn’t need a separate mention.

Competition sub-discipline: no definition yet

SUBJECT:	R&R Committee – Annual Report & Proposals for Changes	AGENDA #	23
AUTHOR:	Ronald Overdijk, Chair – Rules and Regulations Committee		
DATE:	26 November 2025	PAGES:	5 of 32

Competition sub-discipline: A skydiving or indoor skydiving sub-discipline which has a set of competition rules defined by the ISC with distinct requirements and objectives.

Creation of a new term in order to be able to group them within the disciplines.

Competition rules: no definition yet

Competition rules: Rules that determine how the competition discipline and sub-discipline(s) is/are conducted.

The word 'Competition Rules' is used but a definition is missing.

Competition Performance: according to SC 5 – 1.1.2.4

Competition Performance: A skydive ~~parachute jump~~ or indoor skydive performed with the intention of being scored, the result being used to determine the final competition placing. Competition performances include those where a score is officially discarded, ~~as in a throwaway round.~~

Round: according to SC 5 – 1.1.2.5

Round: A round is the execution, by all competitors, of a prescribed competition performance, as described in competition rules. ~~of the same kind, all having been scored.~~ A round may extend over more than one day.

Task: no definition yet

Task: A specific activity or challenge within a competition discipline or sub discipline that competitors must execute, as described in the Competition Rules.

The word 'task' is currently used but a definition is missing.

Event: according to SC 5 – 1.1.2.6

Event: An ISC Sporting Event as defined in GS chapter 4, for skydiving and indoor skydiving, ~~and solely for the purposes of registering a protest, any training rounds, referred.~~

SUBJECT:	R&R Committee – Annual Report & Proposals for Changes	AGENDA #	23
AUTHOR:	Ronald Overdijk, Chair – Rules and Regulations Committee		
DATE:	26 November 2025	PAGES:	6 of 32

A new definition of Event, relating to GS with the true intent of the word ‘event’ (e.g. competition). All specifics are covered in the respective CRs.

Master: (new)

For the purpose of all skydiving and indoor skydiving disciplines, a master competitor is a person over the age of 50 or whose 50th birthday occurs during the calendar year in which the relevant competition takes place.

Parachute-Ski has this category already in its CR’s. Also, the SP committee has noted a wish for this by their competitors.

Score: no definition yet

Score: The performance measurement or number of points awarded by Judges to an individual or team, as described in the Competition Rules.

The word ‘score’ is currently used but a definition is missing.

Result: no definition yet

Result: The value used to rank individual competitors, teams or NAC’s. The conversion of scores to results is as described in the Competition Rules.

The word ‘result’ is currently used but a definition is missing.

Comparison of record and competition

	FAI terms for records	ISC terms for competitions
Class	G (Parachuting)	Skydiving
Sub-Class	G-1 (competition records), G-2 (performance records)	No term
Zone	World, African, Asian, North-American South-American, European, Oceanian	Included in “FCE” SC5 3.4 (GS 2.3) Continental Regions
FCE	Included in „zone“ 4.1 Classification of Sporting Events	World Championship Continental Championship World Cup

SUBJECT:	R&R Committee – Annual Report & Proposals for Changes	AGENDA #	23
AUTHOR:	Ronald Overdijk, Chair – Rules and Regulations Committee		
DATE:	26 November 2025	PAGES:	7 of 32

airsport discipline	Included in „Group“	Parachuting Skydiving and Indoor Skydiving
Group (only G-1)	Accuracy Landing Canopy Formation Canopy Piloting Formation Skydiving Parachute-Ski Speed Skydiving Style Wingsuit Flying Indoor Dynamic Flying Indoor Formation Skydiving Indoor Para Skydiving	Included in “competition disciplines”
Competition skydiving disciplines	Included in “Group”	Accuracy Landing Artistic Events Canopy Formation Canopy Piloting Formation Skydiving Parachute-Ski Speed Skydiving Style Wingsuit Flying
Competition indoor skydiving disciplines	Included in “Group”	Indoor Artistic Events Indoor Formation Skydiving Indoor Dynamic Flying Indoor Para Skydiving
Type of record	2-way fastest time achieved in any speed, 4-way - longest sequence, 8-way – highest average for ten rounds ...	No term
Competition sub-discipline (new term)	Corresponds to “Type of record”	Freeflying, Freestyle Skydiving, 2-way sequential, 4-way sequential, 4-way rotation, CP, CP Freestyle, FS 4-way, FS 8-way, VFS, WS Performance, WS Acrobatic

SUBJECT:	R&R Committee – Annual Report & Proposals for Changes	AGENDA #	23
AUTHOR:	Ronald Overdijk, Chair – Rules and Regulations Committee		
DATE:	26 November 2025	PAGES:	8 of 32

		Indoor Solo Freestyle, Dynamic Solo Speed, D2W, D4W, IFS 4-way, IFS 8-way, IVFS
task (new term)	Corresponds to “Type of record”	WS (Speed, Distance, Time)
Category	general, female, junior, junior female, general night	open, female, junior open, junior male, junior female, master male, master female, master open, mixed team
Performance	Points, meters, seconds, km/h	Included in “Score”
Score (new term)	Included in “Performance”	Individual score, team score
Result (new term)		

[Click here to Return to Table of Contents](#)

SUBJECT:	R&R Committee – Annual Report & Proposals for Changes	AGENDA #	23
AUTHOR:	Ronald Overdijk, Chair – Rules and Regulations Committee		
DATE:	26 November 2025	PAGES:	9 of 32

APPENDIX B**RULES & REGULATIONS COMMITTEE****RECORD CHAPTER 3 - SC5 proposals for changes 2026**

3.1. PROVISIONS

All terms in chapter 3 below (e.g., jumps, performances, rounds, scores, grips) are in accordance with and as defined in the current ISC Competition Rules (CRs) unless explicitly stated otherwise.

remove 14 times "~~as defined in the current competition rules~~"; 3.2.1. (2 times) 3.2.2.1, 3.2.3.3, 3.2.5.2., 3.2.7, 3.2.9.1, 3.3.2 (4 times) 3.3.3.1, 3.3.3.2, 3.3.3.3.,
 One time in 3.1. is enough and applies for all
 The same applies to 18 times ~~in accordance with the current Competition Rules~~ 3.2.3.1, 3.2.4.1, 3.2.4.2, 3.2.5.1, 3.2.6, 3.2.8.1, 3.2.8.2, 3.2.10, 3.2.11
 removed below.

3.1.1 Sub Class (G1) Competition Records

With following group of records

- AL Records
- CF Records
- CP Records
- FS Records ~~(including VFS)~~
- IFS Records ~~(including IVFS)~~
- DY Records
- PS Records
- SP Records
- ST Records
- WS Records
- IPS Records

3.1.2 Sub Class (G2) Performance Records

With following group of records

- AL Records
- CF Records
- FS ~~and VFS Records~~
- SP Records
- ST Records
- WS Records
- Altitude/Fall Records

Housekeeping same plural for al

3.1.3.5.

(a) Where an ~~World~~ International Record performance, whether it is a Competition Record or a Performance Record, takes place during an FCE, GS. 7.8.4 will apply using the following procedure:

See definition document para 3.1.4. which includes world and continental FAI records

~~3.1.3.6. All relevant paragraphs of this Sporting Code and its annexes apply to International Record attempts.~~

Can be deleted. See SC5 1.1.1. "*this Section, ... contains the regulations that apply to all sport parachuting and indoor skydiving activity*". So what is the meaning of this additional sentence? if removed, then renumbering will be as below.

3.1.3. ~~7.6.~~

SUBJECT:	R&R Committee – Annual Report & Proposals for Changes	AGENDA #	23
AUTHOR:	Ronald Overdijk, Chair – Rules and Regulations Committee		
DATE:	26 November 2025	PAGES:	10 of 32

3.1.3-~~8.7.~~

3.1.3.~~9.8.~~

3.2 Competition Records may only be established during the scheduled competition rounds at ~~a~~ an International Sporting Event ~~or National Championships~~ that has been registered in the FAI Sporting Calendar, ~~or a National Championships~~.

IBD 2025-04. Specifying that Competition Records may be claimed during National Championships without the need of registering the competition in the FAI Sporting Calendar. The order in the 2025 text was changed and this made it compulsory which was not intended.

3.2.1.1. Joint Record Holders in ~~AL~~, CF, CP, DS, FS, VFS, IFS, IVFS, IPS, DY, ~~PS~~, SP, ST and WS

3.2.1.1.1. ~~(1)~~ If two or more competitors or teams achieve the same record performance during the same ~~competition~~ round and thereby break an existing record, the new record shall be registered in the names of all the competitors or teams involved.

If AL and PS are added here and also total score is covered, all record groups are listed and the “AL, CF, CP, DY, FS, VFS, IFS, IVFS, IPS, PS, SP, ST and WS” can be removed.

3.2.1.1. is valid for all G-1 records.

The additional text of 3.2.2.3, can be removed.

3.2.1.1.2. ~~(2)~~ If a competitor or team achieves a performance during a later round in the same ~~event competition~~ (?), which is equal to a new record performance achieved during an earlier round in that ~~event competition~~ (?), no recognition ~~as a record~~ will be given. ~~to the performance in the later round as being a record performance.~~

Numbering as in ISC template 1.1.1.1.1.

3.2 COMPETITION RECORDS

Competition Records may ...

... meets the criteria of 4.3.1.1

unchanged reference to ISC approved scoring systems

3.2.2. AL Records

3.2.2.1. **Individual**: The record performance of an individual is the lowest total of centimeters after a completed competition program of ten rounds ~~as defined in the current Competition Rules~~.

3.2.2.2 **Team**: The record performance of a team is the lowest total of centimeters of the team after a completed competition program of eight rounds. ~~The program and method of determining the team score is stated in the current Competition Rules.~~

~~3.2.2.3. If two or more competitors or teams achieve the same record performance after the same completed competition program and thereby break an existing record, the new record shall be registered in the names of all the competitors or teams involved.~~

3.2.2.3 is obsolete if 3.2.1.1. is amended and includes also AL

3.2.3 CF Records

3.2.3.1. 4-Way Rotation

The record performance ~~for a 4-way rotation~~ is the number of stacks/planes made by rotation. ~~in accordance with the current Competition Rules.~~

3.2.3.3 Highest Average

The record performance ~~for the highest average~~ is the ~~highest~~ average number of formations for a completed competition program of 8 rounds ~~as defined in the current Competition Rules~~. The average must be calculated by dividing the final total point score (excluding any tie break jumps/~~performances~~)

SUBJECT:	R&R Committee – Annual Report & Proposals for Changes	AGENDA #	23
AUTHOR:	Ronald Overdijk, Chair – Rules and Regulations Committee		
DATE:	26 November 2025	PAGES:	11 of 32

by 8.

copy from FS/IFS 3.2.5.2. no performance in CF

3.2.4 CP Records

3.2.4.1 ~~CP~~ Distance

the record performance is stated in the paragraph title. The same can be applied to CP. The record performance is the distance achieved in any round of the CP Distance competition.

3.2.4.1.1 - ~~CP~~ Drag Distance 50m: The record performance is the greatest distance achieved in any round of CP Drag Distance 50m. ~~event in accordance with the current Competition Rules~~

3.2.4.1.2 - ~~CP~~ Max Distance: The record performance is the greatest distance achieved in any round of CP Max Distance. ~~event in accordance with the current Competition Rules~~

3.2.4.1.3 - ~~CP~~ Full Drag Distance: The record performance is the greatest distance achieved in any round of CP Full Drag Distance. ~~event in accordance with the current Competition Rules~~

3.2.4.2 ~~CP~~ Speed

3.2.4.2.1 - ~~CP~~ Carved Speed 70m: The record performance is the lowest time achieved in any round of CP Carved Speed 70m. ~~event in accordance with the current Competition Rules~~

'CP' can be deleted as it is already stated in 3.2.4.

3.2.4.2.2 - CP Drag Speed 50m: The record performance is the lowest time achieved in any round of CP Drag Speed 50m. ~~event in accordance with the current Competition Rules~~

3.2.4.2.3 - CP Max Speed 50m: The record performance is the lowest time achieved in any round of CP Max Speed 50m. ~~event in accordance with the current Competition Rules~~

Numbering as in ISC template 1.1.1.1.1.

3.2.5 FS and IFS (including VFS and IVFS) ~~Records~~

3.2.5.1 Longest sequence

The record performance ~~for the longest sequence~~ is the number of formations completed in any round ~~in accordance with the current Competition Rules~~.

3.2.5.2 Highest average

The record performance ~~for the highest average~~ is the average number of formations for a completed competition program of 10 rounds ~~as defined in the current Competition Rules~~. The average must be calculated by dividing the final total point score (excluding any tie-break jumps/performances) by 10.

3.2.6 DY ~~and DS~~ Records

The group is DY and this already includes Solo Speed, 2way, 4way Dynamic

The record performance is the fastest time achieved in any speed round ~~in accordance with the current Competition Rules~~.

3.2.7 PS Records

The record performance of an individual is the lowest total number of points after a completed competition program ~~as defined in the current Competition Rules~~. (2 giant slalom runs and 6 accuracy landing rounds without the final round). ~~If two or more competitors achieve the same record performance after the same completed competition program and thereby break an existing record, the new record shall be registered in the names of all the competitors involved.~~

last sentence about shared record is obsolete if 3.2.1.1. is amended and includes also PS records

3.2.8 SP Records

3.2.8.1 Highest average speed

3.2.8.1.1 ~~(1)~~—The record performance of an individual is the ~~highest~~ average speed of the individual achieved in any round. ~~in accordance with the current Competition Rules~~

SUBJECT:	R&R Committee – Annual Report & Proposals for Changes	AGENDA #	23
AUTHOR:	Ronald Overdijk, Chair – Rules and Regulations Committee		
DATE:	26 November 2025	PAGES:	12 of 32

3.2.8.1.2. (2) The record performance of a team is the **highest** average speed of the team or mixed team achieved in any round. ~~in accordance with the current Competition Rules~~

3.2.8.2 Highest overall average speed

3.2.8.2.1. (2) The record performance of an individual is the **highest** average speed of the individual for a completed competition program. ~~in accordance with the current Competition Rules~~

3.2.8.2.2. (2) The record performance of a team is the **highest** average speed of the team or mixed team for a completed competition program. ~~in accordance with the current Competition Rules~~
Numbering as in ISC template 1.1.1.1.1.

This numbering may change if the record naming convention of the ISC is adopted, giving each record a heading

3.2.9 ST Records

~~3.2.9.1 Fastest total time~~

The record performance is the **lowest total result** (~~i.e. fastest total time plus penalty time(s)~~) after a completed competition program of five rounds ~~as defined in the current Competition Rules. If two or more competitors achieve the same record performance after the same completed competition program and thereby break an existing record, the new record shall be registered in the names of all the competitors involved.~~

One headline is enough, there is only one G-1 ST record.

“Lowest score after 5 rounds” is the term in use by FAI in the record database. This is an additional explanation that the ST score includes time and penalty because in old days a style record was only accepted for a “clean” jump without any penalty applied.

last sentence about shared record is obsolete if 3.2.1.1. is amended and includes also ST records.

3.2.10 WS Records

3.2.10.1. ~~(1)~~ WS Performance

3.2.10.1.1. ~~(a)~~ **Greatest Horizontal Distance**

The record performance is the greatest horizontal distance achieved in the Distance task of any round. ~~in accordance with the current Competition Rules.~~

3.2.10.1.2. ~~(b)~~ **Fastest Speed**

The record performance is the fastest speed achieved in the Speed task of any round. ~~in accordance with the current Competition Rules.~~

3.2.10.1.3. ~~(c)~~ **Longest Time**

The record performance is the longest time achieved in the Time task of any round. ~~in accordance with the current Competition Rules.~~

3.2.10.2. ~~(2)~~ WS Acrobatic **longest sequence**

~~Longest Sequence.~~ The record performance **for the longest sequence** is the number of correctly completed grips in any compulsory round ~~in accordance with the current Competition Rules.~~

3.2.11 IPS Records

The record performance is the fastest time, after application of the compensation coefficient, achieved in any round. ~~in accordance with the current Competition Rules.~~

3.2.12 Categories of Competition Records

The categories of Competition Records shall be:

SUBJECT:	R&R Committee – Annual Report & Proposals for Changes	AGENDA #	23
AUTHOR:	Ronald Overdijk, Chair – Rules and Regulations Committee		
DATE:	26 November 2025	PAGES:	13 of 32

3.2.12.1 (4) AL, ST, CF, PS and SP

General Category – best performance achieved

Female Category – best performance achieved by a woman or a women's team, only if such a team is included in the Competition Rules.

3.2.12.2 (2) CP, FS, VFS, IFS, IVFS, IPS, WS

General Category – best performance achieved

Female Category – best performance achieved a woman or a women's team

3.2.12.3 (3) AL, ST, SP and PS

Junior Category – best performance achieved by a Junior

Junior Female Category – best performance achieved by a Junior Female

3.2.12.4 SP and PS

Master Category – best performance achieved by a Master

Master Female Category – best performance achieved by a Master Female

If the proposed master category definition is approved by the plenary and CRs include this category. (PS has this category already in the CRs for more than 10 years without records)

Other competition committee could add this category in their CRs. It will however lead to more medals/costs.

3.2.12.5 (4) ~~DS~~, DY

Junior Category - best performance achieved by a Junior or a Junior team

~~(5) — ~~DS~~, ~~DY~~~~

General Category - best performance achieved

DY includes DS, 2way and 4way so DS does not need to be mentioned separately.

(4) and (5) can be merged as all three DY records have general and junior category

All 3.2.12 Numbering as in ISC template 1.1.1.1.1.

3.3 Performance G-2**3.3.1. AL Performance Records**

3.3.1.1 The record performance ~~of accuracy jumps~~ is ... (superfluous)

3.3.1.2 In a team jump, the **record** performance is ...

3.3.2 CF Performance Records**3.3.2.1. Team definition for CF Performance,**

The "Largest Formation Team" is made up of the declared participants which are:

- The persons in the Record Formation
- Videographers of the Record formation, and
- Alternates available on site and available to immediately join the Record Formation

Amounting to no more than 120% of the size of the Record Formation.

Moved up here to have it only one time

3.3.2.2. Grip definition

A grip is defined in CF Competition Rules ~~A grip is~~

~~(a) a hand hold on an "A" line or front riser, or~~

~~(b) contact with the "A" line from behind with the front of the lower leg or ankle, defined as between the instep of the foot and below the knee. (the instep of the foot does not need to be marked with a tape) (both as defined in the relevant Competition Rules).~~

Moved up and merged from below

SUBJECT:	R&R Committee – Annual Report & Proposals for Changes	AGENDA #	23
AUTHOR:	Ronald Overdijk, Chair – Rules and Regulations Committee		
DATE:	26 November 2025	PAGES:	14 of 32

All 3.3.2.numbering as in ISC template 1.1.1.1.1.

3.3.2.3. Largest Formation

The record performance ~~for the Largest Formation~~ is the number of persons in one formation which is the “Record Formation”. ~~The “Largest Formation Team” is made up of the declared participants which are:~~

- ~~• The persons in the Record Formation~~
 - ~~• Videographers of the Record formation, and~~
 - ~~• Alternates available to immediately join the Record Formation~~
- ~~Amounting to no more than 120% of the size of the Record Formation.~~

Moved up to 3.3.2.1.

A written plan describing the Record Formation to be attempted and the declared Largest Formation Team must be submitted in advance to the Judges. The Record Formation must be complete as described with only members of the Largest Formation Team in the formation.

All persons in the completed formation must be connected by at least one grip either taken by the person or taken on the person.

~~A grip is~~

~~(a) a hand hold on an “A” line or front riser, or~~

~~(b) contact with the “A” line from behind with the front of the lower leg or ankle, defined as between the instep of the foot and below the knee. (the instep of the foot does not need to be marked with a tape) (both as defined in the relevant Competition Rules).~~

Moved up to 3.3.2.2.

3.3.2.4. Large Formation Sequential and Full Break Large Formation Sequential

The record performance ~~for the Large Formation Sequential and Full Break Large Formation Sequential~~ is the number of persons (not less than 25% (rounded up) of the size of the Largest Formation Record (World or Continental Regional, General or Female, as appropriate) at the time the sequential record is performed) to complete a sequence of two or more formations, giving a separate record performance for each number of formations completed.

~~Large Formation Sequential and Full Break Large Formation Sequential Team is made up of the declared participants which are:~~

- ~~• The persons in the Record Formation~~
 - ~~• Videographers of the Record formation, and~~
 - ~~• Alternates available to immediately join the Record Formation~~
- ~~Amounting to no more than 120% of the size of the Record Formation.~~

Moved up to 3.3.2.1.

A written plan describing the Record Formations and the transitions to be attempted and the declared Largest Formation Team must be submitted in advance to the Judges. The Record Formations and the transitions must be completed as described with only members of the Largest Formation Team in the formations.

All persons in the completed formations must be connected by at least one grip either taken by the person or taken on the person.

~~A grip is~~

~~(a) a hand hold on an “A” line or front riser, or~~

~~(b) contact with the “A” line from behind with the front of the lower leg or ankle, defined as between the instep of the foot and below the knee. (the instep of the foot does not need to be marked with a tape) (both as defined in the relevant Competition Rules).~~

Moved up to 3.3.2.2.

SUBJECT:	R&R Committee – Annual Report & Proposals for Changes	AGENDA #	23
AUTHOR:	Ronald Overdijk, Chair – Rules and Regulations Committee		
DATE:	26 November 2025	PAGES:	15 of 32

3.3.2.4.1 (4) Large Formation Sequential

In the transition from one formation to the next, at least 35% of the persons in the first formation must either release all of their grips and all grips on them must also be released or be a member of a released sub-group, consisting of no more than four persons.

Each person or group must re-dock in a different position or on a different set of grips.

Each subgroup must be clearly presented and remain intact as a subgroup from the grip release until the correct completion of the next formation. Simultaneous separation during the transition is not required but total separation must be shown at some point in time during the transition as shown in the written plan

3.3.2.4.2 (4) Full Break Large Formation Sequential

3.3.3. FS and VFS Performance Records

3.3.3.1 ~~FS and VFS~~ Largest Formation Records

~~Largest Formation~~ (remove line break)

The record performance ~~for the Largest Formation~~ is the number of persons in one formation. A written plan describing the formation to be attempted and the persons involved must be submitted in advance to the Judges. The formation must be completed as described with all named persons in the formation.

All persons in the completed formation must be connected by at least one grip either taken by the person or taken on the person. ~~A grip is a handhold on an arm or leg (both as defined in the relevant Competition Rules) of another person.~~

Grip definition as defined in CRs (stated in 3.1.) and well known.

~~VFS Performance Requirement~~

- ~~• Head Up Orientation – the torso is vertical with the head up, towards the sky.~~
- ~~• Head Down Orientation – the torso is vertical with the head down, towards the ground.~~

3.3.3.1.1 FS Largest Formation

Clause 3.3.3.1 applies.

3.3.3.1.2 VFS Largest Formation Head-up

Further to 3.3.3.1, all persons in the completed formation must be in a head-up orientation.

3.3.3.1.3 VFS Largest Formation Head-down

Further to 3.3.3.1, all persons in the completed formation must be in a head-down orientation.

3.3.3.2 FS Full Break Large Formation Sequential

~~Full Break Large Formation Sequential~~ (remove line break)

The record performance ~~for the Full Break Large Formation Sequential~~ is the number of persons (not less than 25% (rounded up) of the size

unchanged

All persons in the completed formations must be connected by at least one grip either taken by the person or taken on the person. ~~A grip is a handhold on an arm or leg (both as defined in the relevant Competition Rules) of another person.~~

Grip definition as defined in CRs (stated in 3.1.) and well known.

In the transition from...

unchanged

3.3.3.3 VFS Large Formation Sequential Records

~~Large Formation Sequential~~ (remove line break, remove "Records" as it is already in 3.3.3.

SUBJECT:	R&R Committee – Annual Report & Proposals for Changes	AGENDA #	23
AUTHOR:	Ronald Overdijk, Chair – Rules and Regulations Committee		
DATE:	26 November 2025	PAGES:	16 of 32

The record performance ~~for the Large Formation Vertical Sequential record~~ is the number of persons (not less than 20% (rounded up) of the size ...
 unchanged8 people (whichever is larger).

~~A grip is a handhold on an arm or a leg (as defined in the relevant Competition Rules) of another person.~~ If a grip is taken on a particular arm or leg, then moving that grip to another arm or leg attached to that particular arm or leg will not be considered a new grip for the purpose of determining the number of changed grips between formations.

In the transition from...
 unchanged

3.3.4 Speed Performance Record – Individual

No change. If the proposed change by the WS committee (2% / 1% error range) is accepted then this paragraph might be synchronized (conditional of keeping all existing records)

3.3.5 ST Performance Record - Individual

~~ST fastest time~~

The record performance of a style jump is the ~~result (i.e. fastest~~ time plus penalty time for one series of manoeuvres) ~~as described in the current Competition Rules.~~

The additional headline is not needed

“Lowest single round score” is the term in use by FAI and still as such in the database. It is just an additional explanation that the ST score includes time and penalty because in old days a style record was only accepted for a “clean” jump without any penalty.

3.3.6 WS Performance Records

For WS records, all persons must wear a wingsuit, which complies with the definition in 1.1.2.16 and the use of a drogue is not allowed
 may need to be updated, if 1.1.2. is changed in alphabetical order

3.3.6.1. Largest Formation No Grip.

The record performance is the number of persons (not less than ~~16 sixteen~~) in close formation without grips that is performed and evaluated in accordance with the current WS Largest Formation Performance Record Rules.

3.3.6.2 (new number) Large Formation Sequential No Grip

The record performance is the number of persons (not less than 16) to complete a sequence of two or more wingsuit formations without grips, giving a separate record performance for each number of formations completed.

IBD 2025-12. the Large Formation Sequential Wingsuit No Grip record was by mistake not included this section of 2025 SC5

Renumber all following to 3.3.6.3 – 3.3.6.6

3.3.6.2. (2) WS Time of Fall Record individual

Housekeeping, (2) remained in 2025 from old numbering

3.3.7 Altitude/Fall Records – Individual

No change

3.3.8 Categories of Performance Records

The categories of Performance Records shall be:

SUBJECT:	R&R Committee – Annual Report & Proposals for Changes	AGENDA #	23
AUTHOR:	Ronald Overdijk, Chair – Rules and Regulations Committee		
DATE:	26 November 2025	PAGES:	17 of 32

- General Category – best performance achieved
- Female Category – best performance achieved by a woman or women's team or group.
- AL, ST and SP only: Junior Category – best performance achieved by a Junior
- SP only: Master Category – best performance achieved by a Master
If the proposed master category definition is approved by the plenary and CRs include this.
- AL, ST and SP only: Junior Female Category – best performance achieved by a Junior female
- SP only: Master Female Category – best performance achieved by a Master Female

If the proposed master category definition is approved by the plenary and CRs include this.

- General Category night: Largest Formation, Large Formation Sequential ~~FS~~, VFS and CF only, Full Break Large Formation Sequential FS and CF only, Largest Formation WS no grip only - best performance achieved at night. (housekeeping - FS no longer has LF Sequential record)

3.3.9 ~~Joint Record Holders in AL~~

~~In the case of more than one individual or distinct team achieving an identical record performance on the same calendar day and thereby breaking an existing record, the new record shall be registered in the names of all the individuals or teams involved. Two or more teams are distinct only if they have no common members.~~

3.3.10 Simultaneous Records ~~Joint Record Holders~~ in AL, CP, ST, SP, WS, Altitude/Fall, Largest Formation, Large Formation Sequential and Full Break Large Formation Sequential

In the case of more than one individual or distinct team achieving an identical Performance Record on the same calendar day ~~and thereby breaking an existing record~~, the new ~~joint~~ record shall be registered in the names of all the ~~concerned~~ individuals ~~or teams~~ involved. Two or more teams are distinct only if they have no common members.

Duplication of the same text, merge 3.3.9 and 3.3.10

Change of text in order to be in line with the GS 7.6 'Simultaneous Records'. Logically, 'simultaneous' is not the correct word as this implies that the records were broken at the exactly the same time, which is actually how it is described in the GS. 'Joint' would be the correct FAI GS term.

3.3.4. CONTINENTAL REGIONAL RECORDS

No change.

[Click here to Return to Table of Contents](#)

SUBJECT:	R&R Committee – Annual Report & Proposals for Changes	AGENDA #	23
AUTHOR:	Ronald Overdijk, Chair – Rules and Regulations Committee		
DATE:	26 November 2025	PAGES:	18 of 32

APPENDIX - C

RULES & REGULATIONS COMMITTEE

SC5-FCEAD-FAI&JURY HANDBOOK Proposals for changes 2026



SC5

1.1.2 Adding several new definitions as per separate definitions document, and placing them in alphabetical order.

All competition committees are kindly requested analyze up to what point their CRs can be synchronized with the ISC definitions and additional discipline related definitions can be placed in alphabetical order in the CRs.

R&R also would like to have general approval for this at the ISC 2026 Plenary Meeting

1.1.2.1 **SKYDIVE PARACHUTE JUMP:** A ~~parachute~~ jump ~~is a skydive~~ by a person from an aircraft, an aeroplane or a spacecraft with the intention of using a parachute for the whole or a part of the descent to the surface of the earth. **Needed change following out of the proposed changes in definitions.**

1.1.2.7 Team: ~~A number of parachutists jumping or indoor skydivers performing together in an event.~~ A Team is defined in the GS 4.2.2. The composition of a team is defined in the competition rules.

Aligning with the definition as per FAI-GS – a standard definition – with the team composition and medals being the committees prerogative in their CRs.

1.1.2.11 Mondial: An International Sporting Event, comprised of WSC's in all ISC competition disciplines (except IS, CP, WS and PS, which may be included or excluded at the option of the Organiser), taking place concurrently **or consecutively** in the same location.

Adding the word consecutively allowing events at different times – all the same time, separately or overlapping - during a Mondial.

1.2.1 Documents

Every ~~person parachutist or indoor skydiver~~ who ~~enters a wishes to make~~ competition ~~and/or who wants to set a record, record jumps or performances, which are covered by this Sporting Code, and every Team Manager,~~ must have a valid FAI Sporting Licence (GS, Chapter 3)

Update as per FAI-GS 2025, 4.2.3 "In First Category events, the team leaders are considered as competitors and must have a Sporting Licence."

(note: ISC has asked CASI to have the TM exempted from this obligation)

1.4.1 / 4.5.1.1 / 4.7.2.7 Replace the word ~~deposit~~ with **"performance bond"**

As per 2025 proposal of the Finance Secretary.

Chapter 3 Records. This whole chapter is proposed to be updated and for the sake of discussion it is covered in a separate document.

4.4.1.1 The provisional entry of a NAC for an FCE must reach the Organiser at least 75 days before the start of the competition. The Organiser must then circulate the provisional entry list to all ~~those~~ NACs ~~that have made a provisional entry~~ not more than one week after the provisional entry date. **The Organizer is not obliged to accept an official entry from a NAC that did not submit a provisional entry in time.**

It is better to inform all NACs so everybody has been notified. And it happens already by means of the ISC mailing list. And adding a protection clause for the Organiser regarding late entries.

SUBJECT:	R&R Committee – Annual Report & Proposals for Changes	AGENDA #	23
AUTHOR:	Ronald Overdijk, Chair – Rules and Regulations Committee		
DATE:	26 November 2025	PAGES:	19 of 32

NEW: suggestion to change the order of 4.4.1.2 and 4.4.1.3.

~~4.4.1.4~~ can be deleted as this is stated already in both 4.4.1.1 and 4.4.1.2.

~~4.4.1.2 The payment of the entry fee(s) by a NAC for an FCE must be in the hands of the Organiser, on or before a date proposed by the Organiser, subject to approval by the ISC Bureau. In the case of an International Competition, other than an FCE, this deadline is set by the Organiser.~~

4.4.1.3 The official entry of a NAC for an FCE must reach the Organiser at least 45 days before the beginning of the Competition. The payment of the entry fee(s) by a NAC for an FCE must be in the hands of the Organiser on a date as in bulletin #1. If payment is not made the entry is considered invalid but 4.4.4 and 4.4.5 are applicable and sanction fee will be invoiced to the NAC.
In the case of an International Competition, other than an FCE, these deadlines ~~this deadline are is~~ set by the Organiser.

New stricter process for payment of entry fees, based on an experience at an FCE in 2025. Bottom line is that official entry must be followed up by payment.

~~4.4.1.5 The list of entrants may be altered at any time until the earlier of:~~

- ~~a) one hour after the take-off of the aircraft carrying competitors making the last official training jump and~~
- ~~b) two hours before the start, as announced by the MD, of the official Team Managers meeting. No further alteration of the entrants list is permitted after this time. (GS 4.8.3)~~

4.4.1.4 (re numbering) Once the registration period as stated in the bulletin has passed, a NAC may not increase the number of entrants listed on the entry form but may substitute a new entrant for another.

Integral change of the wording, setting an end time until which entrants may be replaced.

4.4.2.2. A National Delegation will be composed of:

Competitors as prescribed in the Competition Rules applicable to the discipline ~~event~~ (i.e. the number of teams or individual competitors and their ~~gender~~ category).

Category is more open than gender, including age (junior), and it is in line with the new proposed records terminology.

4.4.3 Multiple Entries

A competitor ~~or team videographer~~ may enter more than one FCE, discipline or sub-discipline, ~~event~~ taking place at the same time in the same location, but such participation will not be grounds for any protest against the application of 5.2.5.2 nor will the minimum time limits prescribed in 5.2.5.3 ~~apply have any application~~ in respect of jumps/performance made in different FCEs, disciplines or sub-disciplines ~~or events~~

Adaption in line with the proposed new definitions terminology (1.1.2.7).

SC5 4.5.7. End of Competition

With regard to Anti-Doping and In-Competition testing of any competitor in any sub-discipline, the competition ends 1 hour after the end of this competitor's last scheduled competition round

SUBJECT:	R&R Committee – Annual Report & Proposals for Changes	AGENDA #	23
AUTHOR:	Ronald Overdijk, Chair – Rules and Regulations Committee		
DATE:	26 November 2025	PAGES:	20 of 32

(including re-jumps, re-performances, finals or tie-breaks).

New proposed wording needed for defining time limitations for Anti-Doping testing.

4.7 Jury

4.7.1.6. a) The Jury President, ~~the third Juror (not the acting FAI controller), the two Jury members~~ and an eligible reserve (selected, according to their qualifications, their experience, their availability ~~and the number of Juries served on during the previous two years~~) will be appointed for each FCE by the ISC Plenary Meeting, from the list of ISC Jurors, upon recommendation by the ISC Bureau and the relevant Competition Committee Chairs working in consultation.

The FAI Controller will act as Jury Member from the start of the FCE and will keep the task on the Safety Panel (SC5 4.8) and Video Review Panel (SC5 5.2.6.8).

The FAI Controller will become a Jury Member by default. This saves travel expenses from ISC budget and avoids duplication of tasks. The FAI-C brings the knowledge about bulletins, risk assessment, notice board, toilets, jury office, loudspeaker,... with him into the Jury. The FAI Controller keeps the Safety Panel and Video Review Panel tasks (both cannot be protested) so it is no possible conflict.

Unchanged is the nomination and approval process for the Jury as such (proposed by the bureau and the relevant Competition Committee Chairs working in consultation and then **approved by the plenary**) It is just done for one Jury member already, when the bid is approved (SC5 4.1.1.2).

The clause with all three Jury members on site for multiple FCEs remains, above is about nomination process for one of the Jury members only. The clause about the number of Juries has not been enforced.

4.7.1.7.a) Where a Jury member becomes unable to serve for the whole or part of an FCE, the Jury President may, in consultation with the ISC President ~~(or the ISC First Vice President if the ISC President is not available)~~, appoint a replacement Jury member as required.

That comes by definition of any "Vice..."

(b) Where a Jury President becomes unable to serve for the whole or part of an FCE, the on-site Jury member will act as Jury President and then will, in consultation with the ISC President ~~(or the ISC First Vice President if the ISC President is not available)~~, appoint a replacement Jury member as required.

~~(c) Any replacement Jury member must be selected from the list of ISC Jurors. If none is available, the replacement may be selected from amongst any other person present at the FCE.~~

~~(d) The requirement in 4.7.1.11(b) below to have been present at the previous ISC Plenary meeting or be proposed by a Committee Chair will not apply to appointments made in accordance with 4.7.1.7(a), (b) and (c)~~

All red text is just a guidance to the ISC Bureau and the relevant Competition Committee Chairs how to come up with their recommendation (4.7.1.6. (a))

All these rules have an escape clause in the end "If none is available..." or "The exceptional circumstances..."

4.7.3.2. Before a protest is submitted, the protester shall follow the complaint procedure in accordance with GS 6.2. The complaint must be made within the same time limitation as for a protest (5.3.1) Any decision on a complaint must be quoted on the protest and/or explained at the

SUBJECT:	R&R Committee – Annual Report & Proposals for Changes	AGENDA #	23
AUTHOR:	Ronald Overdijk, Chair – Rules and Regulations Committee		
DATE:	26 November 2025	PAGES:	21 of 32

Jury hearing.

Adding a time limitation on a complaint as otherwise this could hamper finishing a competition.

4.10 MINIMUM PARTICIPATION

When fewer than 4 NACs have entered in an event (~~see~~ as defined in the Competition Rules, 4.2) at an FCE, GS 4.7.1 permits the ISC to determine whether the event will take place and whether the title of Champion will be awarded.

4.10.1 If ~~fewer less~~ than 4 NACs ~~but a minimum of 4 individuals/teams~~ make an official entry ~~and participate~~, the event will take place, and the title of Champion-~~(excluding the words World and Continental)~~ will be used. The same provision regarding entries applies to ~~World Cups any other FCE~~, where the title of Winner is always used.

At the time of entry a NAC does not know how many total entries there will be.

There are no other FCEs than World/Continental championships or World Cups. And this stops the wrong application of “winner” which was also used in the past with an FCE with less than 4 teams and application of the relevant IBD's.

4.10.2 ~~An Discipline or Sub-discipline event~~ will be removed ~~as a valid event~~ from the ISC Competition Rules, if

~~(a) The event does not take place at two successive FCEs by reason of 4.10.1 above.~~

~~(b) The event has fewer less than 4 NACs participate at two successive FCEs.~~

Proposed text to remove any interpretation issues regarding the less than 4 NACs issue in relation to categories (e.g. open/female)

5.2.5.3. Each competitor is allowed a minimum time from arriving at or returning to (as appropriate) the competition site to the first call for the next jump/appropriate notification for the next performance. The minimum time is:

- 45 minutes for ~~CF~~, CF2 sequential, CF4 sequential and WS Acrobatic competitors.
- 30 minutes for ISF, DY, IFS, AL, ST, CP, PS, SP, CF4 rotation and WS Performance.

Shorter time for CF4 rotation as no dirtdiving is needed. The CF committee agrees.

5.2.5.4 The minimum time, referred to in 5.2.5.3 above, does not apply to:

° any shorter time period proposed by the MD, provided all affected competitors/teams agree.

That would cover a situation (happened in 2025) when shorter times are needed in order to be able to finish the competition in full.

5.2.6.4 As soon as possible after each jump is completed, the videographer must deliver ~~the video equipment and~~ the video media ~~used to record~~ of that jump for dubbing at the designated dubbing station. The video evidence must remain available for viewing or ~~dubbing download~~ until all ~~results scores~~ are posted as final.

Updated text reflecting the actual hardware/video media situation, and changing ‘scores’ to ‘results’ as the (final) results are shown, after possible percentage calculations (CP, WS).

5.2.6.8 A Video Review Panel will be established prior to the start of the official training jumps, ~~5.2.6.9~~ consisting of the CJ, the President of the Jury, and the FAI Controller. Decisions rendered by the Video Review Panel shall be final and shall not be subject to protest or review by the Jury. Correction and subsequent renumbering.

~~5.2.6.9~~ the number needs to be deleted as one text item was stated in 2 different ones.

~~5.2.6.13 For AE and WS acrobatic the organiser must provide the teams with a way of identification of the team showing the team number/round to be recorded by the Videographer just before exit.~~

SUBJECT:	R&R Committee – Annual Report & Proposals for Changes	AGENDA #	23
AUTHOR:	Ronald Overdijk, Chair – Rules and Regulations Committee		
DATE:	26 November 2025	PAGES:	22 of 32

~~The recording of this or other clear identification of the team number and round should continue into the jump without any stop in recording. Failure to meet this requirement will result in a score of zero (0) points for the relevant round.~~

This is very specific to the disciplines so suggestion is to move this part (including CF4 rotation) to the respective competition rules. Both committees agreed.

5.2.10.2 The official scoreboard and its location will be ~~approved~~ ~~designated~~ by the relevant CJ ~~and must be approved by the Jury.~~ The scoreboard may be electronic.

Removal of the Jury in approval of the way of showing results, and where and making this the responsibility of the CJ. Who is the person who is responsible for scores anyway. Also, allowing an electronic way of showing scores (e.g. big screen / TV)

5.2.10.3 ~~Printed~~ All scores and results must be posted on the official scoreboard. The method of posting will be determined by the relevant CJ in conjunction with the organiser and must be announced before the competition starts.

~~(a) The unofficial results must be posted as soon as they are collated.~~

(b) All official results must be posted as soon as possible. If available electronically the official results must be posted on the FAI/ISC website. Any results that appear on non-FAI/ISC website(s) are considered unofficial, unless they are in the form of direct links to the FAI/ISC website or otherwise authorised by the ISC Bureau. The relevant CJ will ensure that the printed official results are available in time for the award ceremonies.

Proposal to remove the unofficial results, as it states `all scores` in the first line.

5.3.1. The two hour time period is applicable when the competitors in the event are required to be at the competition site. ~~and do not have competition obligations.~~ However, it does not apply from the time the competitors have been called or notified as per 5.2.5.1 until

- a) they arrive at or return to (as appropriate) the competition site after their jump (for skydivers) or
- b) they exit the wind tunnel chamber (for indoor skydivers)

The current text of not having competition obligations would in practice lead to very likely not being able to file a protest because these obligations could include anything, and it would be open for debate, hence insolvable arguments. The proposal limits the time to actual performance time.

5.3.2 For the purposes of 5.2.10.3 and 5.3.1, results for a particular event or round are considered official, when posted on the official scoreboard or the FAI/ISC website, with the approval ~~signature~~ of the CJ thereon.

Change of words, allowing electronic approval instead of a signature on paper.

5.4.1 The MD will determine whether the severity of the infringement (using the categories defined in GS 6.1.2) leads to a warning or to the penalties described in 5.4.2, ~~The MD will determine whether the infringement is Technical, Serious, or Unsporting Behaviour.~~

A repetition of any infringement that led to a warning will result in automatic application of a penalty described in 5.4.2.

- A Technical Infringement is an infringement of the rules or a failure to comply with requirements, caused by mistake or inadvertence where no advantage has accrued or could have accrued to the competitor or team concerned.
- A Serious Infringement includes dangerous or hazardous actions and any repetition of a Technical Infringement.
- Unsporting Behavior includes cheating, including deliberate attempts to deceive or mislead

76th FAI/ISC PLENARY MEETING, 24-25 JANUARY 2026, RIYADH, SAUDI ARABIA

<i>SUBJECT:</i>	R&R Committee – Annual Report & Proposals for Changes	<i>AGENDA #</i>	23
<i>AUTHOR:</i>	Ronald Overdijk, Chair – Rules and Regulations Committee		
<i>DATE:</i>	26 November 2025	<i>PAGES:</i>	23 of 32

officials, bringing FAI into disrepute, willful interference with other competitors, falsification of documents, use of forbidden equipment or prohibited drugs, tampering with (camera) equipment, violations of airspace, [abusive comments on social media](#) or repeated Serious Infringements.

Renumbering of paragraph: 5.4.2.1: warning, 5.4.2.2: technical infringement, 5.4.2.3: serious infringement, 5.4.2.4: unsporting behaviour.

Update in order to put 5.4.1 in line with the current text in the FAI-GS

SUBJECT:	R&R Committee – Annual Report & Proposals for Changes	AGENDA #	23
AUTHOR:	Ronald Overdijk, Chair – Rules and Regulations Committee		
DATE:	26 November 2025	PAGES:	24 of 32

FCEAD

2.1.1 Application Schedule

The application must be submitted by a NAC, an ISC recognized National Parachuting Authority or a potential Organiser to the ISC President [and the ISC Finance Secretary](#). [The ISC Finance Secretary will request an invoice for the relevant Application Fee \(2.2.1 and 2.2.4\) which will be due on presentation.](#)

An application must contain all the information indicated in Annex 2 “FCE Bid Document Format” and the Application Fee as described in 2.2.1 below must be paid [as invoiced by the FAI](#).

[As per ISC finance secretary 2025 agenda item and IBD 2025/01.](#)

- Move the payment process into 'fee schedule & payment procedure'
- Finance details. New term to incorporate instead of ~~deposit~~, change to [performance bond](#).
- Judges travel - not ~~airports~~ but 'defined location(s) as per accepted bid'

2.1.1.1, 2.1.1.2 and 2.1.3.

Change ~~October 1st~~ to [November 1st](#).

[By request of the CP committee. Most CPK FCE's take place at the of the year which leaves very little time for NAC's to consider bids. Overall, the Bureau does not need 2 months to evaluate a bid for an FCE. Furthermore, this does not change the process for any late bids.](#)

2.2.4.1. (1) ~~An FCE in~~ Style and Accuracy Landing [and Canopy Piloting FCE's are](#) ~~is~~ regarded as one discipline for the purpose of the Application Fee and [Performance Bond](#) ~~Deposit payment~~.

[As per ISC 2025 Fees Schedule. This proposal might become unnecessary if the R&R definition proposals on this part are accepted.](#)

Annex 3 (bulletin format) point 5

3.1.1 Event Dates – the time period must comply with that set out in the Competition Rules and the Sporting Code Section 5.

Complete program / Official training / Competition dates and schedule:

Official arrival day FAI controller	date	time
Official arrival day CJ's, CP+SP+WS Directors	date	time
Official arrival day Electronic Scoring Operator	date	time
Official arrival day EJ's, panel Judges	date	time
Official arrival day entrants	date	time
Official practice day(s)	date	time
1st Official Team Managers meeting	date	time
Opening ceremony	date	time
Competition(discipline) starts	date	time
Competition ends (last take off)	date	time
Open Committee meeting (provisional)	date	time
Award ceremony	date	time
Banquet & closing party	date	time
Departure day	date	

[Clarification / specification as this happens to be undefined at some FCE's.](#)

3.4 Details of access to location by air, public transport or car, and car rental possibilities ~~(recommended main airport or other airports, with relevant road and rail connections (including timetables, car rental possibilities),~~ and (if included in the bid) pickup arrangements [specifying pickup location\(s\) and with](#) costs.

76th FAI/ISC PLENARY MEETING, 24-25 JANUARY 2026, RIYADH, SAUDI ARABIA

<i>SUBJECT:</i>	R&R Committee – Annual Report & Proposals for Changes	<i>AGENDA #</i>	23
<i>AUTHOR:</i>	Ronald Overdijk, Chair – Rules and Regulations Committee		
<i>DATE:</i>	26 November 2025	<i>PAGES:</i>	25 of 32

Simpler text.

Entry dates (for provisional and final registration, see SC5 [or as per Organisers' deadline](#))

SUBJECT:	R&R Committee – Annual Report & Proposals for Changes	AGENDA #	23
AUTHOR:	Ronald Overdijk, Chair – Rules and Regulations Committee		
DATE:	26 November 2025	PAGES:	26 of 32

FAI Controller Handbook

The duties and responsibilities of the FAI Controller, which commence upon appointment, are:

- To visit and inspect the competition site at a suitable time during the preparation thereof ~~unless deemed unnecessary~~ if deemed necessary by the ISC Bureau and/or the relevant ISC Competition Committee.

This almost does not happen anymore. Most of the time infrastructure is built up maximum 2 weeks before the start of an FCE. And is it costly and time-consuming.

3.4.4 Must determine the amount of the Final Sanction Fee. ~~and ensure that~~ If greater than the Provisional amount already paid, ~~the balance is promptly notified to notify~~ the ISC Finance Secretary of the balance, ~~so that an FAI invoice may be raised and promptly paid by the Organiser so that~~ to be paid before the Jury may declare the event to be valid.

Simplification of the text, reflecting the current procedure.

3.5 At the conclusion of the Event

3.5.3 Will ~~advise~~ inform the ISC Finance Secretary of the actual number of ~~participants~~ eligible entrants who need to pay a Sanction Fee (as listed on an Official Entry Form) so that the final accounting can be made of the Sanction Fee. (SC5, 4.1.3)

Not participants, but eligible entrant. Not all participants need to pay a Sanction Fee. The proper accounting is done by the FAI controller.

Checklist

Before:

- ☐ Compile a list of all Competitors and Team Managers with the FAI SL number (ID).

This list needs to be sent to FAI on closure of the FCE.

- ☐ Check Sporting License information on the FAI/ISC database for all Competitors and Team Managers.

The biggest amount of checking can already be done before arrival at the FCE as the final registration has finished before as well.

On arrival at the Event:

- ☐ Final check Sporting License information on the FAI/ISC database for all Competitors and Team Managers.

As per FAI requirement a TM must be in possession of a valid Sporting License. Which need not from the same NAC as the Competitors.

- ☐ Ensure all necessary equipment is available and as per OA, ~~and~~ accepted bid, bulletins and – if applicable – an IBD.

Adding IBD as these can change requirements in the accepted bid.

New: Annex 6: FAI Controller Standard Report Form

As per Bureau action May 2025

SUBJECT:	R&R Committee – Annual Report & Proposals for Changes	AGENDA #	23
AUTHOR:	Ronald Overdijk, Chair – Rules and Regulations Committee		
DATE:	26 November 2025	PAGES:	27 of 32

Jury Handbook

The ISC Jury Handbook is proposed to be shortened, referring to the FAI Jury Guidelines and only to state specific ISC Jury tasks and requirements.

ISC Jury specific items on top of the FAI Jury Guidelines.

In the case of any disagreement between information or a requirement in this Handbook and that in an Original Document, e.g. SC5, the Original Document takes precedence over this Handbook.

It is the responsibility of the ISC Rules and Regulations Committee to prepare, maintain and publish this Jury Handbook.

Jurors having queries, problems or disputes regarding this Handbook or any other matter concerning their duties and responsibilities should contact a member of the ISC Bureau.

Any ISC FCE shall have a NOMINATED JURY (GS 5.2.4.2, SC5 4.7.1) consisting of three persons, a Jury President and two Jury Members, all appointed by the ISC. For a Parachute-Ski FCE the appointment will be in accordance with the Parachute-Ski Competition Rules.

- The FAI controller will act as a Jury Member from the start of the FCE and keep the tasks as a member of the Safety Panel (SC 5.4.8) and Video Review Panel (SC5 5.2.6.8).

No conflict of interest is possible because of SC5 4.8.9. "A decision of the Safety Panel is not subject to protest or appeal to the Jury."

The event may not begin until the Jury and the CJ have given their approval (SC5 4.5.1). The Jury may not give its approval until

1. it receives confirmation that the required Deposit has been paid to the FAI or the required Guarantee has been provided (FCEAD 2.2.3)
 2. the provisional estimate of the Sanction Fee (SC5 4.1.3) has been paid to the FAI and
 3. the FAI Controller has reported that the state of organisation readiness is satisfactory.
- Post current World and Continental Records on the official information board.
 - Handle World / Continental records application procedure as in SC5 3.1.3.5(a) – Annex ISC Record Claims Spreadsheet.

Validation of the FCE

- Verification of results: to be confirmed by the CJ.
- Payment of the final amount of the Sanction fee: to be confirmed by the FAI controller.
- Send the officially accepted entry list and official results of the FCE(s), within 24 hours of the end of the FCE, electronically to the FAI secretariat (Sec.Gen@fai.org) and the ISC President (amparacuellos@gmail.com) with a copy to the ISC Recording Secretary (veraasquith@gmail.com) and FAI records (record@fai.org)
- In accordance with the SC5 4.7.2.(7), the Jury will, within eight (8) days of the conclusion of the event, prepare and submit a report to the ISC Bureau as to whether or not all the Organiser's contractual commitments have been satisfactorily completed. This report will also be sent to the Organiser at the same time as to the ISC Bureau.
- It may be considered necessary to hold a debriefing session regarding the running of the competition with officials ~~and competitors~~. In this case it is suggested that the debriefing is organised and chaired by the Jury President.

76th FAI/ISC PLENARY MEETING, 24-25 JANUARY 2026, RIYADH, SAUDI ARABIA

SUBJECT:	R&R Committee – Annual Report & Proposals for Changes	AGENDA #	23
AUTHOR:	Ronald Overdijk, Chair – Rules and Regulations Committee		
DATE:	26 November 2025	PAGES:	28 of 32

An Open Committee meeting with competitors is normally already held, chaired by the Chair of the competition committee. The mentioned debriefing session is another meeting

NEW

FAI Sporting License Database Access Instructions

[Click here to Return to Table of Contents](#)

SUBJECT:	R&R Committee – Annual Report & Proposals for Changes	AGENDA #	23
AUTHOR:	Ronald Overdijk, Chair – Rules and Regulations Committee		
DATE:	26 November 2025	PAGES:	29 of 32



APPENDIX D

ANNEX 6: FAI CONTROLLER'S STANDARD REPORT FORM

Competition:	
Event:	
Location:	
Date (start – end):	
Summary of the Preparations prior to the event:	
Financial obligations:	
Venue set up:	
Infrastructure:	
Opening and Closing Ceremonies:	
Conduct of the event:	
Comments to Officials, MD, Jury, Judges	
Recommendations for the Organisers:	
Rule Changes – Proposals and considerations:	
Personal Remarks and any other topics:	
<p>In accordance with the Sporting Code Section 5, 4.1.1.2 this form is to be completed and sent to the ISC Bureau within 30 days of the competition's completion.</p>	

Name:	
Signature:	
Date:	

SUBJECT:	R&R Committee – Annual Report & Proposals for Changes	AGENDA #	23
AUTHOR:	Ronald Overdijk, Chair – Rules and Regulations Committee		
DATE:	26 November 2025	PAGES:	30 of 32

[Click here to Return to Table of Contents](#)

APPENDIX E

RULES & REGULATIONS COMMITTEE INTERNAL REGULATIONS Proposals for changes 2026



3.7.1 Content of the Agenda

The Agenda, which will be established by the ISC President in conjunction with the ISC Recording Secretary and in consultation with the Chairs of the ISC Committees and Working Groups, will be sent out with the notice convening the meeting.

The Agenda that is sent out will contain (but is not limited to) the following items, which must be submitted in writing to the ISC President ~~or~~ and ISC Recording Secretary no later than December 1st in the calendar year before the Plenary Meeting in question:

This saves time and effort for the ISC President to forward the documents to the ISC Secretary.

3.7.3 Proposals

Proposals or other items for discussion may only be included in the Agenda if submitted in writing to the ISC President ~~or~~ and ISC Recording Secretary no later than December 1st in the calendar year before the Plenary Meeting in question by:

Same reason as above.

5.2.3 Re-Election

The **First Vice**-President may be re-elected for an unlimited number of terms and shall take office upon election.

This section relates to the 1st Vice-President.

5.5.2 Duties

The Recording Secretary will assist the ISC President in preparing the Agenda for the Plenary Meeting and shall be responsible for preparing and sending the minutes of each Plenary meeting to the President and FAI secretariat **before March 1st** ~~after within 18 days of~~ that meeting's adjournment. The Recording Secretary will document and publish the minutes of all Bureau meetings and all Bureau decisions made between Plenary Meetings.

By request of the ISC Recording Secretary, more time is generally needed and wished for.

5.7 Replacement as Delegate

Should a Bureau Member, other than the Finance Secretary or Recording Secretary, at any time during their elected term, cease, for any reason, to be a Delegate, representing an FAI Active Member in accordance with 3.1 of the FAI By-Laws, that Bureau Member will be considered to have resigned their position and the provisions of ~~5.9~~ **5.6** will apply.

If such a Bureau Member is reappointed to their original Delegate or Alternate Delegate status by the FAI Active Member before the elections called for in ~~5.9~~ **5.6** take place, that Bureau Member shall resume their position with immediate effect.

There is no number 5.9 in the Internal Regulations, It should be 5.6.

6.1 ESTABLISHMENT

The ISC shall set up Committees with permanent or temporary status, which shall have specific Terms of Reference for their work and responsibilities, which must be approved by the ISC. The Terms of Reference are attached ~~in report~~ **in Annex 5**.

Improved wording - this suggested wording change makes it similar to what is written in 7.1.

6.2.3 Members

Members, who are not Delegates or Alternate Delegates, are required to obtain approval for their appointment either from the Delegate representing their FAI Member or from their FAI Members. This

SUBJECT:	R&R Committee – Annual Report & Proposals for Changes	AGENDA #	23
AUTHOR:	Ronald Overdijk, Chair – Rules and Regulations Committee		
DATE:	26 November 2025	PAGES:	31 of 32

approval must be given in writing no later than the end of the Plenary Meeting at which the appointment is made ~~(6.4.2)~~

Reference removed as it does not add any clarification

6.3.1 and 7.3.1, change ~~interim year of its term of office~~ to **second year term of office**.

There is no such thing as an interim year in a 2 year cycle.

7.2 COMPOSITION

Each ISC Working Group, consists of a Chair and up to five other individuals. Members, who are not Delegates or Alternate Delegates, are required to obtain approval for their appointment either from the Delegate representing their FAI Member or from their FAI Member. This approval must be given in writing no later than the end of the Plenary Meeting at which the appointment is made ~~(6.4.2)~~.

Reference removed as it does not add any clarification

9 ISC WEB SITE

The ISC ~~part~~ **section** of the FAI Website will be administered by a person (Webadmin) appointed by the ISC Bureau.

Recommended wording sounds better

Annexes – **renumbering so references are not duplicated in the Document**

Annex 5: insertion of 'Terms of Reference for the ISC Media Working Group'.

As per Media Working Group proposal, they are currently lacking.

The Following refer to the Annex: HOSTING A PLENARY MEETING

~~3 ——— Technical Workroom~~

~~This workroom should have at least one computer connected to the internet and a colour network printer for use by members of the committees and working groups. The computer(s) should include MS Office and Adobe Acrobat software. The printer(s) should be easily accessible by personal computers or function from a memory stick or other storage device. Sufficient printing paper and office supplies (stapling machine, staple remover, scissors, glue, pens, etc.) must be available.~~

3 Printing, photocopying, office supplies

Printing and photocopying services should be made available for Bureau members, Committees and Working Groups. Miscellaneous office supplies should be available upon request.

ISC can get away from paper. In recent years, not much printing has been done. Last year hardly anyone (other than the Secretary on one or two occasions) used the printer and supplies that were set up.

4 Internet Connections

The main meeting room, **and** all auxiliary meeting rooms ~~and the technical workroom~~ must all provide free and secured Wireless Internet connection and access.

See rationale above.

9 Registration Fee

...

The following registration options must be offered:

- Full attendance, with and without accommodation

SUBJECT:	R&R Committee – Annual Report & Proposals for Changes	AGENDA #	23
AUTHOR:	Ronald Overdijk, Chair – Rules and Regulations Committee		
DATE:	26 November 2025	PAGES:	32 of 32

- Plenary attendance only, with and without accommodation
- [Open meeting attendance only, with and without accommodation](#)

The registration options with accommodation must be between two and five nights for Delegates, Alternate Delegates and Appointed Observers, thereby making it possible for them to attend all or part of the scheduled meetings.

The full attendance period commences the evening before the start of the official open meetings and finishes with lunch on the fifth day (when the Plenary Meeting finishes).

The plenary attendance only commences the evening before the start of the Plenary Meeting and finishes with lunch on the fifth day (when the Plenary Meeting finishes)

[The open meeting attendance only commences the evening before the start of the official open meetings and finishes with lunch on the third day \(when the final agenda documents are to be submitted\)](#)

Add the 3 day “open meeting only” option as it is already offered this year as being mandatory. It should be possible for non-voting observers/ alternate delegates to do the work until the final documents are to be submitted and thereafter just voted by the delegates.

	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat	Sun
Full stay		(D) B L (D)	B L (D)	B L (D)	B L (GalaD)	B L
		1	2	3	4	5
Open only		(D) B L (D)	B L (D)	B L		
		1	2	3		
Plenary only					(D) B L (GalaD)	B L
					1	2
No accomodation		B L (D)	B L (D)	B L (D)	B L (GalaD)	B L
)	

visualization of the three options with 2, 3 or 5 nights Each night has B(reakfast) and L(unch)
(D)= optional dinner and optional Gala Dinner as described already in Annex 6 7 "evening meals and/or gala dinner may also be included, but this is an option of the host."

[Click here to Return to Table of Contents](#)